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Advisers LLC
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Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) - US Municipal Bond Fund
2018
122,469,172.23 98.75
1,546,652.65 1.25
124,015,824.88
( 13,175 ) 100.00
2018
( ) ( )
)
1 12,401,941.492 | 9.993 | 123,889,285.71 | 9.875| 122,469,172.23 | 98.75
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2018 3
2018 3
2017 2018

2017 86,931 9,235.55 101.35 10,767
2017 61,000 6,480.64 100.37 10,663
2017 61,277 6,510.07 101.20 10,751
2017 62,807 6,672.62 101.05 10,736
2017 64,460 6,848.23 101.29 10,761
2017 70,944 7,537.09 102.40 10,879
2017 74,057 7,867.82 101.46 10,779
2017 77,764 8,261.65 101.52 10,785
2017 86,931 9,235.55 101.35 10,767
2017 109,411 11,623.82 101.66 10,800
2018 121,935 12,954 .37 100.15 10,640
2018 123,453 13,115.65 99.24 10,543
2018 124,016 13,175.46 100.13 10,638
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2017 0.10 11

2017 0.10 11

2017 0.10 1

2017 0.10 1

2017 0.10 11

2018 0.10 11

2018 0.10 1

2018 0.10 1

(2016 11 16 2018 1.5 159

2016 11 16 2017 11

()

2016 11 26 2017

0
11 2.45%

100x =
2017 11
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105
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1611716 1612730 177331 17/6/30 1719729 17229 18/3/29

64F
(2016118168~ 20165 126%H) (201751818~ 201751 25%H) (20181818~ 20186 285%H)

(5%) ik 38 (%) =100x (a—b)=b
a=BE#+ (201 8EIC DLTIEIAFER D1 20 Bl - LERl o s eSS
=4 RN DORESO 1 O S  DeE EfiE
201 6EEMIRE. BREsE 81 DXt 2Tl

2016 11 16 2017 11 2017 11
2016 960,532 -86,930 873,602
11 16 2017 11 960,532 -86,930 873,602
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
2.2 5 $85,122,358 9,043,399
2.1 1,264,251 134,314
110,399 11,729
2.10 3 6,138,555 652,160
$92,635,563 9,841,602
( 225 6) 4 0
2.4 3,900,000 414,336
8.2B 90,630 9,629
2.8 2.10 3 30,465 3,237
8.1D 25,863 2,748
16,397 1,742
8.1C 16,191 1,720
8.2A 7,757 824
8.1B 2,296 244
8.2D 1,313 139
8.1E 838 89
4,091,754 434,708
3 87,616,689 9,308,397
927,120 98,497
88,543,809 9,406,894
$92,635,563 9,841,602

2018 5 4

2018 5 4
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
2.11 2,072,595 220,192
2.11 6,362 676
6,819 724
« N
2.6 (646) (69)
¢ 2.2 . 358,587 38,096
2,443,717 259,620
8.2B 420,847 44,711
8.1C 151,980 16,146
8.1D 121,579 12,917
8.2A 47,132 5,007
40,037 4,254
8.1B 22,367 2,376
8.1E 16,932 1,799
16,397 1,742
8.2D 6,100 648
200 21
843,571 89,621
1,600,146 170,000
1,600,146 170,000
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2016 11 16
3 96,430,220 10,244,747 - - 96,430,220 10,244,747
2.8 3 (8,813,531)  (936,350) - - (8,813,531)  (936,350)
2.7 - - (673,026) (71,502) (673,026)  (71,502)
- - 1,600,146 170,000 1,600,146 170,000
2017 11 30 $87,616,689 9,308,397  $927,120 98,497 $88,543,809 9,406,894
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30

2017 11 30

$1,600,146 170,000

(85,257,594) (9,057,767)

500,000 53,120

646 69

(6,819) (724)

(358,587) (38,096)

() (110,399) (11,729)

3,900,000 414,336

O 161,285 17,135

(79,571, 322) (8,453,657)

90,291,665 9,592,586
(8,783,066) (933,113)
(673,026) (71,502)
80,835,573 8,587,971
1,264,251 134,314

2.1
2.1 $1,264,251 134,314
$6,362 676
$2,072,595 220,192
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30

1.
2013 12 2

1l

2016 10 3
2016 11 16
2014 1 22
2017 2 1 190 Elgin Avenue, George

Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay,
Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

1 A
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1933
1940
NB Baa3/BBB-
Baa3/BBB-
NB
Bal/BB+
2017 11 30 75.2
3 - A B
C
A B C
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2163 12 1
(i) 300
(i)
1
1 25
1
/
1
1
2018 5 4
IFRS
IFRS
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 28
2016 1 1
2016 11 16 2017 11 30
2016 11 16
IFRS 9 IFRS 9 IAS 39
2014 7
IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS
9 2018 1 1
IFRS 9 3
FVOCI FVTPL IFRS 9
IAS 39
IFRS 9 IFRS 9
IFRS 9

IAS 39
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IAS 39
IFRS 9
ocClI
IAS 39 IFRS 9
IAS 39 FVTPL
IFRS 9 FVTPL
IFRS 9
IFRS 9 IAS 39
IFRS 9 IAS 39
FVTPL
12 /

IFRS 9
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2.1
3
2017 11 30
2017
$ 857
1,263,394
$ 1,264,251
2.2
A
2017 - 2017 -
$ 85,122,358 $ 84,763,767

2017 -
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NAV

i (i i)NAV Gii)
(iv)

12

1 10,000

2.3

2017 11 30
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7
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2017 11 30
()
(i) O
(M (i)
2017 11 30
2017
A $ 673,026
2.8
IAS 32

2017 11 30
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2017 11 30

2017 11 30 $113,179,696

2.9

2.10
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2.11
10
2.12
2063 12 2

2017 11 30

IAS 12
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2017 11 30
2.13
3.
1
1
1 100
2 5
2017 11 30 1
1
A $ 88,543,809 873,602 $ 101.355

2017 11 30 1 100%
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%

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
2016 11 16 2017 11 30
A $ - $96,430,220 (8,813,531) $87,616,689
$ - $96,430,220 (8,813,531) $87,616,689
2017 11 30
2016 11 16 2017 11 30
A - 960,532 (86,930) 873,602
- 960,532 (86,930) 873,602
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2017 11 30
IMF

2017 11 30

2017 %
11 30

$ -3 - 3 2,703 $ - 3 2,703 0.0%
- - 2,703 - 2,703 0.0%
1,264,251 85,122,358 (2,707) 2,157,204 88,541,106 100.0%
$ 1,264,251 $ 85,122,358 $ ® s 2,157,204 $ 88,543,809 100.0%

**
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2017 11 30
2017 11 30
A
2017 11 30
9%
* %

Aaa 5.7%
Aal 8.2%
Aa2 19.0%
Aa3 20.9%
Al 15.5%
A2 17.7%
A3 2.9%
Baal 4.4%

94_3%
* S&P/
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2017 11 30
2017 11 30 1 1 3
$ 3,900,000 $ - 3 3,900,000
90,630 - 90,630
30,465 - 30,465
25,863 - 25,863
16,397 - 16,397
16,191 - 16,191
7,757 - 7,757
2,296 - 2,296
1,313 - 1,313
838 - 838
$ 4,091,750 $ - $ 4,091,750
15%
2017 11 30
2017 11 30 1 1 3 3
- $ 2,707 $ - $ - $ 2,707

- 2,703 - - 2,703
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( ) ( )
BBH $ @ % - $ 4)
$ OR] - 3 )

BBH $ @ 3% - 3 - 3 (4)
$ @4 $ - 3 - 3 (@)

BBH -
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E
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F
G
H

2163 12 1
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3
1
2 1

100/226



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 11 16
2017 11 30
3
2017 11 30
1 2 3
2017 11 30
$ - $ 85,122,358 $ - $ 85,122,358
$ - $ 85,122,358 $ - 8 85,122,358
$ - 8 @ s - s O)
$ - s @ s - s @
2017 11 30 1 2 3
2 2
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2016 11 16

2017 11 30

NAV

2017
11 30

i 2017 11 30

2
5.4
2017 11 30 12,665,373,650 113,194,867
11,953,485, 956
11,947,005,432 6,480,524
2017 11 30
6.

100%
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
2017 11 30 0.00 %
2017 12 11 BBH JPY 302,400 2,707 $ 4)
BBH -
7.
2017 11 30
$ 6,173
646
$ 6,819
$ 358,591
Q)
$ 358,587
8.
8.1
A
3,750 5
0.06% 5 0.05% 10 0.04%
2017 11 30 2017 11 30
B

2017 11 30 2017 11 30
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0.25%
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D
0.20%
2017 11 30
30
E
10
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8.2
A
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2017 11
0.32%
0.01% 1
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2017 11 30
B
0.12%
0.57%
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
i
il
iii
25
/365
C

5,000
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2016 11 16
2017 11 30
D
0.01%
2017 11 30 2017 11
30
9.
10%
2016 11 16 2017 11 30
10.
2018 5 4
2017 12 1 2018 5 4 42,925,086 8,110,168

568,665
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2017 12 29
( )
( \14,253,926,298) \  14,435,410,698
( \599,943) 599,943
725,090
67,578,000

119,640,275
14,623,954,006

22,230,914

112,630,000
10,060,661

5,664,523

5,215,169

1,460,292

1,133,672

495,463

158,890,694

\ 14,465,063,312

\ 3,241,047,014
81,814,393
11,142,201,905

\ 14,465,063,312

349,170
8,221
9,831,856

9,282
9,952
\ 1,133
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2017 12 29
( )

\ 307,383,318
307,383,318

30,320,116
8,596,547
5,091,931
4,861,422
4,775,665
2,272,681

498,457

56,416,819

250,966,499

C )
C )
(11,224,355)
(68,990,993)
(80,215, 348)

/C )
55,392,838
45,410,903
100,803,741
20,588,393

\ 271,554,892
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(

/C

/(

/(C

250,966,499
(80,215,348)
100,803,741

271,554,892

(325,453,529)
9,352,823,679

9,298,925,042

5,166,138,270

14,465,063,312

44,679 8,797 4,037,783
334,677 16,061 5,619,239

7,508 367 224,217

(37,694) (17,004) (49,383)

304,491 (576) 5,794,073

349,170 8,221 9,831,856

\  3,118,730,000 158,700,000 6,324,625,150
69,787,083 3,618,124 252,048,322
(351,500,000) (167,900,000) (55,285,000)

\  2,837,017,083 (5,581,876) 6,521,388,472
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(

*ke

/(

9,195 \ 10,152\ 1,156

247 263 30

140 (103) 13)

387 160 17

(300) (360) (40)

9,282 \ 9,952 \ 1,133
426%™ 1.67% 1.60%
3,241,047,014  \ 81,814,393  \  11,142,201,905
0.58% 0.61% 0.60%

2.65% 2.67% 2.66%
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2017 12 29
(91.9%)
(91.9%)
4.-T)
American University
1,000,000 3.12% 10/01/27 @ 111,442,968
Boston Medical Center Corp.
1,000,000 3.91% 07/01/28 112,101,817
Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
2,900,000 3.15% 05/01/27 @ 326,934,640
Providence Health System
1,000,000 5.39% 10/01/30 130,135,325
680,614,750
(87.2%)
American Municipal Power, Inc., Revenue Bonds
35,000 7.20% 02/15/29 4,978,336
Arizona State University, Revenue Bonds
60,000 4.88% 07/01/18 6,855,180
Bay Area Toll Authority, Revenue Bonds
150,000 7.04% 04/01/50 26,690,269
Boone & Winnebago Counties Community Unit School District No 200, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 0.00% 01701720 ® 53,550,497
California Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 04/01/28 @ 111,712,065
1,500,000 3.79% 04/01/42 (@ 167,703,254
California Housing Finance Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.66% 02/01/29 @ 114,347,607
City of Atlanta GA, Tax Allocation
3,130,000 2.27% 01/01/19 352,295,704
City of Bridgeport CT, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.46% 07/01/22 (©) 112,209,890
City of Holland MI, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 4.14% 08/01/32 ® 102,873,314
City of Jersey City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
350,000 3.76% 09/01/33 38,098,336
City of Kansas City MO, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.38% 10/01/32 @ 59,013,615
City of Los Angeles CA Wastewater System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 4.03% 06/01/39 @ 116,371,569
City of Los Angeles Department of Airports, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.29% 05/15/21 56,077,914
City of Memphis TN, General Obligation Bonds
60,000 5.26% 07/01/25 7,801,204
City of New Orleans LA, General Obligation Bonds
250,000 3.17% 12/01/25 27,580,271
500,000 3.89% 09/01/23 @ 58,480,312
City of New York NY, General Obligation Bonds
2,215,000 3.60% 08/01/28 @ 257,286,526
1,000,000 5.85% 06/01/40 148,404,667
City of Oakland CA, Revenue Bonds
90,000 0.00% 12/15/21 (b) 9,032,408
City of Riverside CA, Revenue Bonds
925,000 3.00% 06/01/25 103,345,121
City of Tucson AZ, Certificates of Participation
175,000 6.30% 07/01/25 22,332,305
Colorado Educational & Cultural Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,590,000 3.39%% 03/01/29 179,258,991
Connecticut State Health & Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.36% 07/01/28 55,847,022
Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
600,000 2.75% 08/01/24 66,707,595
300,000 3.00% 08/01/25 33,409,212
Cook & Will Counties Township High School District No 206 Bloom, General Obligation Bonds
50,000 4.24% 12/01/40 5,518,645
County of Cook IL, General Obligation Bonds
675,000 6.23% 11/15/34 97,148,331
185,000 6.31% 11/15/31 26,223,007
955,000 6.36% 11/15/33 139,459,057
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©L9) C )
©L9%) ¢ )
@®7.26) ¢ )
County of Fresno CA, Revenue Bonds
usb 1,200,000 0.00% 08/15/25 (®) \ 101,395,383
County of Jackson MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.53% 12/01/28 (@ 113,185,266
County of Mahoning OH, General Obligation Bonds
175,000 3.24% 12/01/30 @ 19,006,200
Florida Municipal Power Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 3.06% 10/01/25 139,878,013
Housing Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
400,000 3.23% 02/01/27 @ 44,869,539
400,000 3.28% 08/01/27 ® 45,113,271
300,000 3.33% 02/01/28 (@ 33,749,805
700,000 3-38% 08/01/28 (@ 78,749,544
Hudson Yards Infrastructure Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.88% 02/15/38 @ 113,550,187
I1linois Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.20% 08/01/19 28,107,661
250,000 3.35% 08/01/20 28,181,152
325,000 3.60% 08/01/21 36,695,530
300,000 3.88% 08/01/22 34,042,080
Indiana Bond Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 08/01/28 ® 111,178,199
JobsOhio Beverage System, Revenue Bonds
2,770,000 3.99% 01/01/29 330,735,404
Kansas Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
100,000 3.64% 04/15/24 11,568,340
40,000 4.39% 04/15/30 4,868,454
Kentucky Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
485,000 3.21% 01/01/25 54,022,484
340,000 3.31% 07/01/25 37,926,959
Kentucky State Property & Building Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.26% 05/01/20 111,735,718
2,000,000 6.16% 08/01/23 252,239,390
250,000 6.57% 08/01/29 34,413,252
La Quinta Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
1,230,000 3.77% 09/01/28 @ 139,058,562
1,105,000 4.53% 09/01/39 @ 126,533,323
Maryland Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,205,000 1.98% 07/01/18 248,075,966
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.00% 07/01/28 ® 53,703,673
Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
100,000 5.00% 07/01/24 12,760,754
Minneapolis-St Paul Metropolitan Airports Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.90% 01/01/30 @ 233,171,131
Moreno Valley Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
400,000 3.25% 05/01/26 @ 45,721,923
1,000,000 4.00% 05/01/32 @ 114,678,740
Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia, Revenue Bonds
545,000 3.78% 01/01/20 62,291,824
Nebraska Public Power District, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.05% 01/01/28 27,395,558
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
50,000 2.82% 07/01/23 5,584,646
375,000 2.93% 07/01/22 41,873,441
370,000 2.93% 01/01/23 41,285,540
200,000 2.97% 07/01/24 22,339,485
275,000 3.24% 01/01/24 30,852,145
New Jersey Economic Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
650,000 0.00% 02/15/24 ® 57,418,943
1,425,000 0.00% 02/15/25 ® 120,392,572
2,500,000 4.52% 06/15/21 288,879,055
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 3.84% 09/01/36 @ 397,126,059
New Jersey Higher Education Student Assistance Authority, Revenue Bonds
640,000 3.25% 12/01/30 @ 70,369,062
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New Jersey Institute of Technology, Revenue Bonds
usb 500,000 4.18% 07/01/37 ® \ 57,734,701
New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.73% 01/01/36 114,810,517
1,000,000 7.41% 01/01/40 173,846,658
New Orleans Aviation Board, Revenue Bonds
525,000 2.95% 01/01/23 59,166,820
New York City Transitional Finance Authority Future Tax Secured Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,050,000 3.04% 08/01/27 116,080,758
New York State Dormitory Authority, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.27% 07/01/26 32,826,013
New York State Environmental Facilities Corp., Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.72% 01/15/25 83,581,315
1,990,000 3.26% 01/15/30 @ 225,256,610
North Carolina Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
75,000 5.32% 01/01/31 9,914,453
Palmdale Elementary School District, Special Tax Bonds
650,000 3.25% 08/01/27 71,814,127
1,080,000 3.50% 08/01/28 119,801,197
Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
205,000 1.68% 11/15/18 23,012,494
1,000,000 3.20% 11/15/27 112,062,345
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.93% 12/01/25 27,150,306
Philadelphia Authority for Industrial Development, Revenue Bonds
255,000 6.35% 04/15/28 34,772,953
Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 4.43% 10/15/34 @ 182,316,997
Port of Seattle WA, Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.84% 05/01/24 84,191,207
Public Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
75,000 3.50% 07/01/21 8,291,736
Regents of the University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue, Revenue Bonds
690,000 6.46% 05/15/29 95,348,165
Regional Transportation District, Certificates of Participation
105,000 7.67% 06/01/40 15,763,903
Sales Tax Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
3,000,000 3.59% 01/01/43 337,325,724
San Francisco City & County Redevelopment Agency, Tax Allocation
500,000 3.11% 08/01/22 56,962,622
San Jose Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
2,000,000 3.38% 08/01/34 @ 221,926,152
South Carolina Public Service Authority, Revenue Bonds
545,000 2.39% 12/01/23 58,435,108
1,000,000 6.45% 01/01/50 158,897,278
Stanton Redevelopment Agency, Tax Allocation
800,000 3.13% 12/01/24 88,628,998
State Board of Administration Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.64% 07/01/21 112,746,009
State of California, General Obligation Bonds
2,250,000 7.50% 04/01/34 375,265,702
1,500,000 7.55% 04/01/39 265,853,541
State of California Department of Water Resources Power Supply Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.00% 05/01/22 110,083,436
State of Connecticut, General Obligation Bonds
1,500,000 4.00% 10/15/30 @ 181,764,547
State of Hawaii Airports System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
525,000 3.23% 07/01/27 59,327,655
State of Michigan, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 1.80% 05/01/21 111,056,559
State of Mississippi, General Obligation Bonds
2,500,000 2.99% 12/01/24 285,525,497
375,000 3.14% 12/01/25 43,064,080
State of New York, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 5.62% 03/01/40 71,433,888
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*)
@1 ¢ )
©L9%) ¢ )
®7.2%) ¢ )
State of Texas, General Obligation Bonds
usD 1,000,000 3.52% 10/01/29 @ \ 116,450,410
State of Wisconsin, Revenue Bonds
3,955,000 3.95% 05/01/36 @ 463,291,989
Sumter Landing Community Development District, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.09% 10/01/19 27,861,846
Syracuse Industrial Development Agency, Revenue Bonds
500,000 5.00% 01/01/36 @ 54,902,620
Texas A&M University, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 3.99% 05/15/37 @ 144,901,311
Tulsa Airports Improvement Trust, Revenue Bonds
325,000 3.11% 06/01/24 35,988,692
500,000 3.45% 06/01/26 56,063,272
University of North Texas, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.36% 04/15/27 114,307,061
University of Pittsburgh-of the Commonwealth System of Higher Education, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.13% 09/15/26 229,537,687
390,000 3.43% 09/15/30 45,091,488
Vermont Student Assistance Corp., Revenue Bonds
95,000 3.50% 06/15/29 @ 10,491,631
1,700,000 5.00% 06/15/26 219,709,143
Village of Oak Lawn IL, General Obligation Bonds
1,075,000 2.87% 12/01/22 120,715,229
West Contra Costa Unified School District, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.47% 08/01/33 @ 113,085,025
Yuba Levee Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 2.58% 09/01/20 141,119,758
640,000 2.86% 09/01/21 72,991,448
\ 12,617,885,138
( \13,117,015,488) 13,298,499,888
( \13,117,015,488) \  13,298,499,888
7.9%)
(7-9%)
@.9%)
Citibank N.A.
usb 10,094,209 0.92% 01/02/18 1,136,910,810
( \1,136,910,810) 1,136,910,810
( \1,136,910,810) 1,136,910,810
( \1,136,910,810) 1,136,910,810
C \14,253,926,298) 99.8 \  14,435,410,698
0.2 29,652,614
100.0% \ 14,465,063,312
(@
(O]
©
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(W)
0.2% \ 29,187,485
21.2% 3,065,665,116
1.3% 195,022,894
2.4% 349,821,459
1.9% 280,485,868
2.9% 414,587,528
0.4% 59,327,655
6.3% 906,966,913
0.8% 111,178,199
0.1% 16,436,794
3.4% 490,337,803
1.0% 145,227,403
1.7% 248,075,966
0.4% 66,464,427
2.2% 327,115,139
1.6% 233,171,131
2.3% 328,589,577
0.4% 59,013,615
0.2% 27,395,558
1.0% 141,935,257
9.1% 1,318,675,903
10.3% 1,488,121,740
0.1% 9,914,453
2.4% 354,719,940
0.6% 92,051,964
3.3% 471,627,273
1.5% 217,332,386
0.1% 7,801,204
2.6% 375,658,782
1.6% 230,200,774
0.6% 84,191,207
3.3% 471,583,725
87.2% \ 12,617,885,138
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2017 12 29 ( -0.1%)
D) 3
JPY GS 17,782,977 01/24/2018 USD 157,137 \ 105,236 -\ 105,236
JPY GS 1,646,707,007 01/24/2018 USD 14,730,940 - (10,503, 068) (10,503, 068)
JPY GS 6,500,000 01/24/2018 USD 57,548 25,943 - 25,943
JPY SSB 1,646,707,007 01/24/2018 USD 14,730,888 - (10,497,138) (10,497,138)
JPY SSB 17,494,832  01/24/2018 USD 155,397 12,899 - 12,899
JPY WsTP 17,859,962 01/24/2018 USD 159,505 - (84,106) (84,106)
JPY WSTP 8,300,000 01/24/2018 USD 73,442 37,846 - 37,846
JPY WSTP 28,979,903  01/24/2018 USD 255,815 201,122 - 201,122
JPY WSTP 23,702,159  01/24/2018 UsD 212,725 - (229,124) (229,124)
USD GS 178,792 01/24/2018 JPY 19,985,719 128,176 - 128,176
USD WSTP 157,351  01/24/2018 JPY 17,786,252 - (84,482) (84,482)
USD WsTP 66,363 01/24/2018 JPY 7,500,000 - (34,290) (34,290)
USD WSTP 298,745 01/24/2018 JPY 33,830,000 - (221,582) (221,582)
USD WSTP 37,933  01/24/2018 JPY 4,300,000 - (32,619) (32,619)
UsD WSTP 84,834  01/24/2018 JPY 9,600,000 - (56,254) (56,254)
UsD WSTP 41,578 01/24/2018 JPY 4,700,000 - (22,511) (22,511)
USD WSTP 26,096 01/24/2018 JPY 2,900,000 35,741 - 35,741
USD WsTP 483,233 01/24/2018 JPY 54,812,561 - (449,554) (449,554)
USD WSTP 163,771 01/24/2018 JPY 18,296,666 127,364 - 127,364
USD WSTP 85,191 01/24/2018 JPY 9,600,000 - (16,186) (16,186)
UsD WSTP 40,452  01/24/2018 JPY 4,500,000 50,763 - 50,763
\ 725,090 (22,230,914) \  (21,505,824)

6S \ 259,355 \ (259,355) \ -\ -\ -
SSB 12,899 (12,899) - - -
WSTP 452,836 (452,836) - - -

\ 725,000 \ (725,090) \ -\ -\ -
GS \ 10,503,068 \ (259,355) \ -\ -\ 10,243,713
SSB 10,497,138 (12,899) - - 10,484,239
WSTP 1,230,708 (452,836) - - 777,872

\ 22,230,914 \ (725,000) \ -\ -\ 21,505,824
* /( )
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets November 30, 2017
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 85,122,358
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 1,264,251
Prepaid fees 110,399
Receivables for:
Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 6,138,555
Total assets 92,635,563
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss (Note 2.2, 5, 6) 4
Payables for:
Purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund (Note 2.4) 3,900,000
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B) 90,630
Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) 30,465
Investment management fees (Note 8.1D) 25,863
Professional fees 16,397
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 16,191
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 7,757
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 2,296
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2D) 1,313
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1E) 838
Total liabilities 4,091,754
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units)
Unit capital (Note 3) 87,616,689
Accumulated profit 927,120
Total equity 88,543,809

Total equity and liabilities

Inderjit Singh
On behalf of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Solely in its capacity as Trustee to US Municipal Bond Fund

Claire Guilbert

On behalf of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Solely in its capacity as Trustee to US Municipal Bond Fund

$ 92,635,563

May 4, 2018
Date

May 4, 2018
Date

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income November 30, 2017
Dividend income (Note 2.11) $ 2,072,595
Interest income (Note 2.11) 6,362
Net realized gainon financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 7) 6,819
Net realized loss on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6) (646)
Net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 7) 358,587
Total income 2,443,717

Expenses
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B) 420,847
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 151,980
Investment management fees (Note 8.1D) 121,579
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 47,132
Organization expenses 40,037
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 22,367
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1E) 16,932
Professional fees 16,397
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2D) 6,100
Registration fees 200

Total expenses 843,571

Operating profit 1,600,146

Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holder of redeemable units from operations) $ 1,600,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Unit Capital Accumulated Profit Total Equity

At November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations) $ - $ - $ -
Issue of units (Note 3) 96,430,220 - 96,430,220
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (8,813,531) - (8,813,531)
Distributions (Note 2.7) - (673,026) (673,026)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets

attributable to the holder of redeemable units from operations) - 1,600,146 1,600,146
At November 30, 2017 $ 87,616,689 $ 927,120 % 88,543,809

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities: 30 November, 2017
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holder of redeemable units from operations) $ 1,600,146
Adjustments for:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (85,257,594)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund 500,000
Net (payments)/proceeds from settlement of forward foreign 646
currency contracts
Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profitor loss (6,819)
Net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (358,587)
(Increase) in prepaid fees (110,399)
Increase in payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund 3,900,000
Increase in other payables® 161,285
Net cash (used in) operating activities (79,571,322)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from units issued, net of receivable for units issued 90,291,665
Repurchases of units, net of payable for units repurchased (8,783,066)
Distributions paid to the holder of redeemable units (673,026)
Net cash provided by financing activities 80,835,573
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,264,251
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (Note 2.1) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 2.1) $ 1,264,251
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received $ 6,362
Dividends received $ 2,072,595

@ Other payables comprise of administrator fees, investment management fees, professional fee, distribution fees, fee
agent fees, custody fees, agent member company fees and transfer agent fees as disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

US Municipal Bond Fund (the* Series Trust” ) isa Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the

“ Trust” ), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman
Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 3, 2016 and executed by
Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the" Trustee” ), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The
manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the" Manager” ). The Series Trust commenced
operations on November 16, 2016.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Mutual
Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014.

The address of the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) changed with effect from February 1, 2017 to 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands. The previous address of the Trustee was 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand

Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands.

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the

“ Administrator” ," Custodian” and“ Transfer Agent” ).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the* Fee Agent” ).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the* Agent Member Company” ).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company Limited (the" Investment
Manager” ).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the* Distributor” ) of the
units in Japan.

One class of units in the Series Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the" Class AUnits” ). The Series
Trust and the Class A Units are denominated inU. S. Dollars (* USD” or* $" ).

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing indirectly in
United States municipal securities (the "Municipal Bonds'). The Series Trust seeks to achieve its investment objective by
investing substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust into the USD class of units of Municipal Core Fund (the
"Selected Fund™).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Selected Fund is a series trust of Income Investment Trust, a Cayman Islands umbrella unit trust (the "SF Trust™). The
Selected Fund is registered as a Mutual Fund under the Mutual Funds Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and the SF Trust
has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Cayman Islands Government. Neither the units of the SF Trust, nor the
Selected Fund have been or will be registered under United States Securities Act 1933 and the Selected Fund has not been and
will not be registered under the United States Company Act of 1940. The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek
current income and capital appreciation by investing principally in United States municipal securities.

In order to pursue its investment objective, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC (the* Investment Manager of the
Selected Fund” ) utilizes amulti-disciplinary combination of deep fundamental bottom-up analysis and macro investment
principles to invest in bonds rated Baa3/BBB - or higher and issued by municipalities domiciled in the United States. The
Selected Fund intends to hold high-rated securities (the highest rating has to be Baa3/BBB- or higher with reference to
Moody"s, Standard & Poor®s and Fitch). In its discretion, the Investment Manager of the Selected Fund sells securities
whose credit rating fall to Bal/BB+ or below, depending on market condition.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust”s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market
securities (the "Subadvised Portfolio"). The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month.
Such income is distributed to the unitholder on each distribution date.

The Series Trust held 75.2% of the Selected Fund®s net assets at November 30, 2017.

Currently the Selected Fund has three Classes - Class A JPY Hedged Class, Class B JPY Unhedged Class and Class C USD
Unhedged Class; of units being offered to investors which have been established for certain Japanese Investment Trusts.
All Classes are subscribed to in Japanese Yen of US Dol lars. Class A seeks to be hedged back to Japanese Yen, Class B and
Class C are not hedged against USD denominated assets. The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the
Selected Fund"s redeemable participating shares in the Class C USD Unhedged Class. The Selected Fund al lows repurchases of
these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the fair value of the Selected
Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day following
the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the* Final Repurchase Day” ), unless terminated earlier in accordance
wi'th the provisions of the Trust Deed.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(i) the Net Asset Value on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager
determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving notice to all unitholders; or

(i1) the Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each aCompulsory
Repurchase Event™).

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at the final
repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its sole discretion in
accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 25 as the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or
if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each deal ing day which
is also a day onwhich no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to
time determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased
on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase
Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) (the" Repurchase
Price” ). There is no repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on May 4, 2018.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and
the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting policies. Areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27) (2012) (the Amendments) .
Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarify that an investment entity may provide investment-related services to
third parties - even if those activities are substantial to the entity - as long as the entity continues to meet the
definition of an investment entity. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Based on initial assessment, these amendments did not have a material impact on the Series Trust. This is because the
Series Trust does not have any subsidiaries.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the period from November 16, 2016
(Commencement of Operations) through November 30, 2017 and not early adopted:

A number of new standards, amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after November 16, 2016 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in
preparing these financial statements. The one new standard potentially relevant to the Series Trust is IFRS 9 Financial
Statement, which is discussed below. IFRS 9 published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in I1AS 39 Financial
Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement: IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets and new general hedge
accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments from IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
early adoption permitted.

Classification of financial assets and financial Iiabilities. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profitor loss (FVTPL). IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model in
which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows. The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39
categories of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.

Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are
never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification. IFRS 9 largely retains the
existing requirements in I1AS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities.

However, although under 1AS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option are
recognized in profit or loss, under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally presented as fol lows:

the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is

presented in OCI; and

the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Based on the Series Trust”"s initial assessment, this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the
classification of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Series Trust. This is because:

the financial instruments classified as held-for-trading under I1AS 39 will continue to be classified as such under
IFRS 9;

other financial instruments currently measured at FVTPL under IAS 39 are designated into this category because they
are managed on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy. Accordingly, these financial
instruments will be mandatorily measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9; and

financial instruments currently measured at amortized cost are cash and cash equivalents and al | other assets and
liabilities (including prepaid fees and receivables for units issued and payables for securities purchased,
administrator fees, units repurchased, investment management fees, professional fees, distribution fees, fee
agent fees, custody fees, agent member company fees and transfer agent fees). This instrument solely represents
payments of principal and interest criterion and is held in a held-to-collect business model. Accordingly, itwill
continue to be measured at amortized cost under IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets: 1FRS 9 replaces the' incurred loss® model in IAS 39 with an* expected credit loss® model.
The new impairment model also applies to certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts but not to equity
investments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than under 1AS 39. Based on the Series Trust"s initial
assessment, changes to the impairment model are not expected to have a material impact on the financial assets of the
Series Trust. This is because:

the majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such
instruments; and

the financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality and/or
highly collateralized. Accordingly, the expected credit losses on such assets are expected to be small.

Hedge Accounting: The Series Trust does not apply hedge accounting; therefore, IFRS 9 hedge accounting-related changes do
not have an impact on the financial statements of the Series Trust.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a significant impact on the Series Trust.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less to
be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position (if
applicable).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2017 the Series Trust held the fol lowing balances as cash and cash equivalents:

2017
Cash $ 857
Time Deposit 1,263,394
$ 1,264,251

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Designated as at fair value through profitor loss: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

2017 - Fair Value

2017 - Cost

Investment in the Selected Fund $ 85,122,358

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Loans and receivables: cash and cash equivalents and receivables for units issued.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss:
Held for trading: derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss consist of the following:

2017 - Fair Value

Investment in forward foreign currency contracts $ 4

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

$ 84,763,767

Other liabilities: payables for securities purchased, administrator fees, units repurchased, investment management

fees, professional fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, custody fees, agent member company fees and transfer

agent fees.

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if:

it isacquiredor incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

on initial recognition, it is part of aportfolio that is managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent

pattern of short-term profit taking; or

it isaderivative, other than a designated and effective hedging instrument.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

A non-derivative financial asset with fixed or determinable payments is classified as a loan and receivable unless it is
quoted in an active market or is an asset for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized and subsequently valued at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the' financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss® category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
period inwhich they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated using first-in-first-out
method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, ifany. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the
short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance
with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in net unrealized gains or losses
are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Forward Contracts: Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another
financial asset. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commodity
prices, applied to notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain
or loss on financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Investment in Selected Fund: In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the
Selected Fund. The USD class of the Selected Fund is denominated in USD and will not be hedged into other currencies. The
Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is
subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund*s offering documentation. The Series Trust records its
investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund"s net assets value (* NAV" ), as
determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the details of the reported information
obtained from the Selected Fund®s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of the Selected Fund, or its underlying
investments, (ii) the value date of the NAV provided, (iii) any restrictions on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of
accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation
or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is general ly based on net capital appreciation or depreciation,
respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is based on available
information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on
future circumstances and cannot reasonably be denominated unlit the Selected Fund*s underlying investment are actual ly
liquidated. Further, the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any,
of the liquidity of the Selected Fund"s investments.

The Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business day. The
Series Trust may submit to the Trustee of the Selected Fund or its duly designated agent a Repurchase Notice requesting to
have all or a portion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase date. The Trsutee of the Selected Fund should
receive the repurchase notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 12:00 p.m. Eastern Time in the United States of
America on the applicable repurchase date. If such notice is not respect of the entire holding units of the Series Trust,
then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of more than one
unit or JPY 10,000 (or its equivalent in any currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As of November 30, 2017 none of the financial assets and
liabilities met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and were therefore not offset in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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2_4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts are recognized
initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for
securities sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not
be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee considers the
U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented inU.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust"s

functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U_S. Dol lar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities issue and repurchase of units and income and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the respective dates of such
transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities through profitor loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciationon
financial assets and liabilities through profitor loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current policy of the Series Trust is to pay to
unitholder a monthly distribution in respect of each distribution date of an amount similar to the generated income
attributable to the corresponding distribution period.
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The monthly distribution is expected to be computed from the fol lowing separate elements:
(i) anamount equal to the distributions received from the Selected Fund (net of all applicable taxes); and

(i) interest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, from the time received by the Custodian until paid
out on the corresponding distribution date (the items referred to in paragraphs (a) - (b) hereafter referred to
as the "Generated Income™).

The amount of distribution paid in respect of each distribution date is determined by the Manager in its sole discretion
taking into account Generated Income, realized and unrealized capital gains from the Selected Fund, and miscel laneous
costs, among other factors, per unit each month. The Manager may, in circumstances where it deems appropriate, elect that a
monthly distribution is not payable in respect of units for a relevant month. Circumstances where the Manager may make such
an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series
Trust"s investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous month or have
underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such an election.

Distributions declared and paid during the period ended November 30, 2017 were as fol lows:

2017
Total Amount

Class AUnits $ 673,026

2_8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has redeemable units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust classifies its
puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment),‘ Financial instruments: Presentation”. The
amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as
equity where certain strict criteriaare met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on the
issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the profitor
loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust"s redeemable units have been classified as equity at November 30, 2017.

Redeemable units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series
Trust"s total equity.
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Redeemable units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the
holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Redeemable units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust"s total equity per unit at the time of issue
or repurchase. The Series Trust”s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding redeemable units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder*s option and
entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust"s net assets. The Series Trust holds redeemable
shares in the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to
the total fair value of its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the
Selected Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has
not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date.

2.11 Interest Income and Dividend Income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method and includes interest
income from cash and cash equivalents. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment from the Selected
Fund is established. The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund intends (although it has no obligation) to declare
monthly dividends on the 10th day of every month, or the next business day if such date is not a business day. Accretion of
discount and amortization of premium over the life of the respective security are calculated using the effective yield
method for the Selected Fund.

2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it fromall local income, profits and
capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains. Such
income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes
would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the
period ended November 30, 2017.
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The Selected Fund invests in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign countries
have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the Selected Fund.
These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be
deducted by the Selected Fund®s broker ona' withholding” basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust"s capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The
tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty
about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities
management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the
likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at November 30, 2017 the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for any
unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager”s best estimate
there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the
Series Trust.

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, inwhich it holds an interest but does

not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the fol lowing:
the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only;
the entities” activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and
these entities have a narrow and wel I-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors.
The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are disclosed in Note 5.
3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS
The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust by the

total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series
Trust at the close of business on each dealing day .
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The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid inU.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription application.
The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee
may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made inU.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m. (Tokyo
time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications are
irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2017 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class AUnits $ 88,543,809 873,602 $ 101.355

As of November 30, 2017 all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of interest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
entered into the Series Trust"s register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or a
portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be
submitted inunits. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register
of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase
notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit being
repurchased.

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("'CDSC")
The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if applicable).
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For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether voluntarily or by way of a
compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calculated as a percentage of the purchase price paid at the time of subscription for such
units will be charged by the Distributor in accordance with the fol lowing scale and paid to Credit Suisse International.

Holding Period CDSC
1year or less 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 1.20%
More than 3 years to 4 years or less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 0.40%
More than 5 years None

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the CDSC, units will start ageing from the first day of the
month which fol lows the month in which such units were issued until the relevant Repurchase Day.

The CDSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant repurchasing unitholder
to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust.

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchase Day, the CDSC
shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the relevant units were repurchased on the day on which the
Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager in its discretion

determines otherwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement, the Fee Agent shall continue to be entitled to receive

the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be made in
kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made

by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.
Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as a unitholder

may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such unitholder. No such

repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.
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During the period ended November 30, 2017, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as fol lows:

At November

16, 2016
(Commencement Proceeds from Proceeds from At November
Classes of units of Operations) units issued units repurchased 30, 2017
Class AUnits $ - 3 96,430,220 $ (8,813,531) $ 87,616,689
Total $ - $ 96,430,220 $ (8,813,531) $ 87,616,689

During the period ended November 30, 2017, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as fol lows:

At November

16, 2016
(Commencement Redeemable units Redeemable units At November
Classes of units of Operations) issued repurchased 30, 2017
Class AUnits - 960,532 (86,930) 873,602
Total - 960,532 (86,930) 873,602

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances where
the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as
soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn
during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to
determine fair values, they are validated and periodical ly reviewed by the Manager.
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5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s activities expose it to
avariety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be material ly affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. For example,
if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected Fund
and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns.
Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased
portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain
instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an
adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

(A) Currency Risk

Investment in the Selected Fund and forward foreign currency transactions inwhich the Series Trust invests may be
denominated or quoted in currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in
foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust*"s portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust"s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a security denominated in
that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s
functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another
currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
returns to investors while aweak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates may
fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its returns. Certain positions taken by
the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently
uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in attempting to predict
relative price fluctuations.
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Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed to the performance of a
particular currency or currencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be no assurance that the
Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses attributable to its currency
activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of the Series Trust. In
addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy designated by the
Manager .

The table below summarizes the Series Trust"s exposure to currency risks at November 30, 2017:

Financial Assets

at Fair Value Forward Foreign Other Assets % of
Cash and Cash through Profit Currency and Liabilities Net Asset
At November 30, 2017 Equivalents or Loss* Contracts (Net) Net Value
Japanese Yen JPY $ - $ -3 2,703 $ -3 2,703 0.0%
- - 2,703 - 2,703 0.0%
United States Dol lar usb 1,264,251 85,122,358 (2,707) 2,157,204 88,541,106 100.0%
$ 1,264,251 $ 85,122,358 $ (OB 2,157,204 $ 88,543,809 100.0%

* Excluding derivative financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust"s assets and liabilities to changes in foreign exchange
movements at November 30, 2017. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign exchange rate
increased/(decreased) against the U.S. Dol lar by the percentages disclosed in the table, with all other variables held
constant. This represents management”s best estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having
regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible
shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2017 Net Assets

JPY +/- 3.18% +/- % 86

(B) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term securities generally change more in response to interest rate
changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-termor long-term interest rates
rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate,
the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The
bigger the security"s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in
interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less than
three months and the investment in the Selected Fund.
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The yield on the Selected Fund"s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund*s asset yield and borrowing rates and
consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the Selected Fund"s
(and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments. Amajor change in interest rates or a significant decline in the market
value of the Master Fund®s (and indirectly, the Trust"s) investments, or other market event, could cause the value of the
investments of the Master Fund"s investors (and indirectly the unitholders” investments in the Series Trust), or its
yield, to decline.

The Series Trust may invest in municipal bond securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the Selected
Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or
decrease in the value of the securities held.

At November 30, 2017 should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other variables remaining
constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of redeemable units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $6,317,
assuming that the cash positionwill be held for one year.

(C) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down,
sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally
or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market
conditions which are not specifical ly related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporate
earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which
affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive
conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in
value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at November 30, 2017 would have increased the
total equity by $851,224. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of America at November 30, 2017.
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(D) CreditRisk

Changes in an issuer”s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuer*"s creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trust"s investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt instruments
that may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased credit risk may prevent the Selected Fund"s investment objective and
consequently the Series Trust"s investment objective from being achieved. All transactions in listed securities held by
the Selected Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as
delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust"s credit position on an on-going basis.

Municipal Bond securities inwhich the Selected Fund may invest could be subject to the credit risk of the underlying
assets and in the event of default of such assets and the exhaustion of any underlying credit support, the Selected Fund may
not recover its full investment. Furthermore, it is possible that some issuers of fixed income securities inwhich the
Selected Fund invests will be unable to make the required payments on their debt securities held by the Selected Fund. Debt
securities could also go up or down in value based on the perceived creditworthiness of issuers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of November 30, 2017 is the carrying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series

Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.
The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly concentrated with the

Custodian. At November 30, 2017, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with
the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.
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The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund"s debt portfolio at November 30, 2017 as a
percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” % of Net Assets

Aaa 5.7%
Aal 8.2%
Aa2 19.0%
Aa3 20.9%
Al 15.5%
A2 17.7%
A3 2.9%
Baal 4.4%
94.3%

* Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&P*s/Moody"s Investor Service.

(E) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust"s investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust"s principal investment strategies involve derivatives
or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure to
liquidity risk.

The table below analyzes the Series Trust®s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At November 30, 2017 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Securities purchased $ 3,900,000 $ - 3 3,900,000
Fee agent fees 90,630 - 90,630
Units repurchased 30,465 - 30,465
Investment management fees 25,863 - 25,863
Professional fees 16,397 - 16,397
Distribution fees 16,191 - 16,191
Administrator fees 7,757 - 7,757
Custody fees 2,296 - 2,296
Agent member company fees 1,313 - 1,313
Transfer agent fees 838 - 838

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable units) $ 4,091,750 % - $ 4,091,750
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The Manager monitors the Series Trust"s liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

The following table summarizes the Series Trust"s derivative financial instruments at November 30, 2017, with gross
settlement for which the contractual maturities are considered to be essential to an understanding of the timing of cash
flows based on the Series Trust®s investment strategy. The amounts disclosed in the table represent the undiscounted cash
flows.

Greater than
At November 30, 2017 Less than 1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total

Gross settled derivatives

Forward foreign currency contracts
-Outflow $ 2,707  $ - $ - $ 2,707
-Inflow 2,703 - - 2,703

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with unitholder
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund"s Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include liquid
investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could
require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the
repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that
remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet
the repurchases.

There are no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the year ended November 30, 2017.

(F) Risk Management
The Series Trust"s investment Manager"s team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals, which
provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust
is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust"s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust"s policy
is to perform the following:
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Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of redeemable units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units.

5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust"s entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent, causing
the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United
States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out
transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of
securities, itmay miss attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested
with no return earned thereon for some period.

I the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series
Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to

another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust"s investments or to seek to enhance the Series Trust®s
returns. Derivatives al low the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly and efficiently than
other types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks, including:
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Credit Risk - the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a derivative
transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

Leverage Risk - the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that relatively small

market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or trading strategies

that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

Liquidity Risk - the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that the seller

would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging is a
strategy inwhich the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust"s holdings. While
hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a manner different

from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge. Hedging also
involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings being hedged as expected
by the Manager, inwhich case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no
assurance that the Series Trust”s hedging strategy will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or

cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the

Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to

the risks outlined above to a greater extent than if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of

derivatives to seek to enhance returns is considered speculative.

As of November 30, 2017, the Series Trust®s derivative liabilities subject to netting arrangements and similar agreements

were as follows:

Gross Amounts Net Amounts
of Recognized of Financial
Financial Liabilities Liabilities
Gross Amounts Offset in the presented in the
of Recognized Statement of the Statement of
Derivative Liabilities Counterparty Financial Liabilities Financial Position Financial Position
Forward Foreign
Currency Contracts BBH $ @ $ - % (O]
@ $ -3 (4)
Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial Position
Net Amounts of

Financial Liabilities
presented in the

Statement of Financial Cash Collateral
Derivative Liabilities Counterparty Financial Position Instruments Pledged Net Amount
Forward Foreign
Currency Contracts BBH $ @ $ - $ - $ (O]
) $ - $ - 8 Q)
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Counterparty Glossary:
BBH - Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material
losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge col lateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties inorder to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the period ended
November 30, 2017.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions may be paid in whole or in part out of
investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be zero. A distribution can in
effect result inareturn of an investor®s initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent the
distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may
not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust"s investments caused by declining asset
values and a return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase
Price a unitholder receives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the Selected Fund
fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, or due to a rise in the non-treaty tax rate applicable to the
Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than investors may previously have expected.
Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received accrue falls during the monthly period, this may
also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in units does
not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase Day will be
brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.
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5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust adopted IFRS 13, Fair value measurement®, from November 16, 2016 (commencement of operations) and
utilized the last traded market price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency
swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm®s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are

usual ly based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs
to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is
always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed
may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes' observable® requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under advisement
of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30, 2017 in valuing the Series
Trust®s financial assets and liabilities:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Financial Assets Prices inActive Other Unobservable
Designated at Fair Value Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) 11/30/17

Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ - 3 85,122,358 $ - 3 85,122,358

Financial assets at fair value through
profitor loss $ - 3 85,122,358 $ - 3 85,122,358

Financial Liabilities
Designated at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Investment in forward foreign
currency contracts $ - $ @4 $ - $ (O)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profitor loss $ - % @ $ - % )

During the period ended November 30, 2017 there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on avai lable market information.
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For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market quotes are readily
available are normal ly valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or pricing services and are
classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. Forward foreign currency contracts are
valued using observable inputs which can general ly be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified as Level 2
investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of November 30, 2017, all financial assets and
liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) AtNovember 30, 2017, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities (including receivables for
units issued and payables for securities purchased, administrator fees, units repurchased, investment management
fees, professional fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, custody fees, agent member company fees and transfer
agent fees) are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value
because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of November 30, 2017, the Selected Fund"s net asset value was JPY 12,665,373,650 (approximately US$ 113,194,867). The
Selected Fund held total investments of JPY 11,953,485,956 comprising of fixed income securities (corporate bonds,
municipal bonds & notes, and time deposits) of JPY 11,947,005,432 and forward foreign currency contracts of JPY 6,480,524.
The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would expect to
receive if itwere to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund®s liquidity or redemption
restrictions and costs.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series Trust. During the period
ended November 30, 2017, the Series Trust did not provide any other financial support to the Selected Fund and has no
intention of providing financial or other support to to this entity.

The rights attached to the Series Trust"s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series Trust
has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective
fund agreements. Refer to Note 2 for information regarding the investment objectives and liquidity provisions of the
Selected Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts
The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward foreign currency contracts for the Selected Fund by

buying forward foreign currency contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to
approximately 100% of the USD exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).
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The Investment Manager enters into forward foreign currency contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward foreign
currency contracts.

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts Outstanding at November 30, 2017: ((0.00)% of Net Assets)
Net Unrealized

Settlement Amount Amount Appreciation/
Date Counterparty Currency Bought Currency Sold (Depreciation)
12/11/2017 BBH JPY 302,400 usb 2,707 $ ()]

Counterparty Glossary:
BBH - Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

7. NET GAIN ON INVESTMENTS

November 30, 2017

Net gain on investments consist of the following:

Net realized gain on investments in the Selected Fund $ 6,173
Net realized gain on investments in forward foreign currency contracts 646
Total net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profitor loss $ 6,819

Movement in net unrealized appreciation on investments in the

Selected Fund $ 358,591
Movement in unrealized depreciation on investment in forward foreign
currency contracts @)
Total net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profitor loss $ 358,587

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next US$500
million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The fees
earned by the Administrator during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as
of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of the assets. The fees
earned by the Custodian during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of
November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.
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(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in arrears. The Distribution Fees
are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the
Distributor during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of November 30,
2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears. The fees earned
by the Investment Manager during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager
as of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial

Position, respectively.

The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund receives a fee at the rate of 0.32% per annum, paid monthly in arrears out of the
assets of the Selected Fund based on the average Net Asset Value in the preceding month.

(E) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the assets of
the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees
payable to the Transfer Agent as of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent

Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the
Trustee as of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial

Position, respectively.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees™) and 0.57% of Net Assets
Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees™), accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees
are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust.
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The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as
of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,

respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying certain ongoing and operational costs and expenses of the Series Trust, including
manager fees and the following costs and expenses, which are, in reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as
ordinary costs and expenses (the "Ordinary Costs™):

(i) auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;
(ii) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies; and

(i) insurance costs (if any).

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the sales administrative fees, investment
manager fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 25 and other similar
offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any
taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing and any other
extraordinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for any
outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining fol lowing payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the Fee Agent as
its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day count fraction basis and
are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial

closing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(C) Manager Fees
The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable monthly in

arrears.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in
arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the
Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the period ended November 30, 2017 and outstanding fees
payable to the Agent Member Company as of November 30, 2017 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations)
through November 30, 2017

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the
period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations) through November 30, 2017, the Series Trust did not incur any
borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through May 4, 2018, the date on which these financial
statements were available to be issued. Effective December 1, 2017 through May 4, 2018, there were subscriptions of
$42,925,086 and repurchases of $8,110,168. During the same period, there were distributions of $568,665. There are no
other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2018
124,364,575.56 13,212,492,507
348,750.68 37,051,272
124,015,824.88 13,175,441,235

1,238,580

100.13 10,638
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2018 735,000 7,809

10

2018
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153,874,258

27,253,431

4,177,614,224

33

700,113,014,111
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2015 2015 12 31 2016
2016 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2018 30
106.24
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2016 12 31

2016 2015
4 $195,000 20,717 $180,000 19,123
5 6,342 674 4,863 517
(113,983) (12,110) (85,045) (9,035)

$87,359 9,281 $99,818 10,605

7 $87,359 9,281 $99,818 10,605

8 - - - -

$87,359 9,281 $99,818 10,605

159/226



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 12 31
2016 2015

10 $748,103 79,478 $864,912 91,888
11 373,114 39,640 180,000 19,123
100,343 10,660 90,548 9,620
12 1,000 106 1,000 106
$1,222,560 129,885 $1,136,460 120,738
$1,886 200 $3,145 334
$1,886 200 $3,145 334
$1,220,674 129,684 $1,133,315 120,403
13 $735,000 78,086 $735,000 78,086
485,674 51,598 398,315 42,317
$1,220,674 129,684 $1,133,315 120,403

)

)

2017 6 28 )
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2016 12 31

2015 1 1 $735,000 78,086  $298,497 31,712 $1,033,497 109,799
- - 99,818 10,605 99,818 10,605

2015 12 31

281: 1 13 $735,000 78,086  $398,315 42,317 $1,133,315 120,403

- - 87,359 9,281 87,359 9,281

2016 12 31 $735,000 78,086  $485,674 51,598 $1,220,674 129,684
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2016 12 31
2016 2015

$87,359 9,281 $99,818 10,605

(6,342) (674) (4,863) (517)

$81,017 8,607 $94,955 10,088

(193,114)  (20,516)  (60,000) (6.,374)

(9,795) (1,041)  (10,303) (1,095)

(1,259) (134) 1,333 142

$ (123,151)  (13,084) $25,985 2,761

$6,342 674 $4,863 517

$6,342 674 $4,863 517

$ (116,809)  (12,410) $30,848 3,277

- 864,912 91,888 834,064 88,611

10 $748,103 79,478 $864,912 91,888

12 31
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1
KY1-1104
309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands
2
@
IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB
(b)

IFRS
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2016 2015
$195,000 $180,000
2016 2015
$6,342 $4,863
2016 2015
$107,918 $80,245
107,918 80,245
2016 2015
$3,079 $3,145
2,986 1,655
6,065 4,800




2020 1 18
2016 12 31
HOLT®
HOLT®
5,000 2015 5,000
REITa

US REIT
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2016 12 31
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J-REIT
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AMP
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AMP
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9
US REIT
17-20
REIT
REIT
5-7
10
2016 2015
$748,103 $864,912
11

12
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13
@
2016 2015
1 1
1,000,000  $1,000,000 1,000,000  $1,000,000
1 1
12 31 735,000 $735,000 735,000 $735,000

)
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@

(b)

2016 2015 12 31

©

2016
2015 12 31

)

HKD

HKD usb USD HKD

®©

2016 12 31

15
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16
2016 12 31
17
2017
OAM US REIT 2017 1 27
18 2016 12 31
1ASB 2016 12 31
2 2
IAS 7 2017 1 1
IAS 12 2017 1 1
IFRS 9 2018 1 1

IFRS 15 2018 1 1
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2016 2015

$ $

Turnover 4 195,000 180,000

Other revenue 5 6,342 4,863
Other operating expenses (113,983) (85,045)

Profit from operations 87,359 99,818

Finance costs - -

Profit before taxation 7 87,359 99,818

Taxation 8 - -

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 87,359 99,818

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position at 31 December 2016
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2016 2015
3 $
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10 748,103 864,912
Amount due from fellow subsidiary 11 373,114 180,000
Sundry debtors, deposit and other assets 100,343 90,548
Amount due from immediate holding company 12 1,000 1,000
Total current assets 1,222,560 1,136,460

Current liabilities
Other liabilities 1,886 3,145
Total current liabilities 1,886 3,145
NET ASSETS 1,220,674 1,133,315

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 13 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 485,674 398,315
1,220,674 1,133,315

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

)
)
) Director
)
)

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Share Retained

capital profits Total

$ $ $

At 1 January 2015 735,000 298,497 1,033,497
Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - 99,818 99,818

At 31 December 2015 and

1 January 2016 735,000 398,315 1,133,315
Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - 87,359 87,359

At 31 December 2016 735,000 485,674 1,220,674

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2016 2015
$ $
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 87,359 99,818
Adjustment for:

Interest income (6,342) (4,863)
Operating profit before changes in working capital 81,017 94,955
Increase in amount due from fellow subsidiary (193,114) (60,000)
Increase in sundry debtors, deposits and other

assets (9,795) (10,303)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (1,259) 1,333
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (123,151) 25,985
Investing activities
Interest received 6,342 4,863
Cash generated from investing activities 6,342 4,863
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (116,809) 30,848
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 864,912 834,064
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 10 748,103 864,912

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2
@

®)

Principal activities and registered office

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “ Company” ) is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. The Company"s principal activities are the creation of trusts
and the administration and management of assets in the trusts. The Company"s registered
office is c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1
1104, Cayman Islands.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (* IFRSs” ), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“ IASs” ) and Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(* 1ASB” ). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is set
out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost bhasis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into United States Dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated into United States Dollars using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful debts.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate cash be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company"s assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective
evidence exists, the asset"s recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting
period. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is
recognised in profit or loss when the investment management service is provided.
Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis.
Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Company if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person®s family, is related to the Company if that
person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i1) has significant influence over the Company; or
(ii1) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company®s
parent.
(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
(i1) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
iil) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third party.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Changes in accounting policies

The 1ASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Company. None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Company"s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts.

Turnover represents investment management fee income earned from fellow subsidiary as fol lows:

2016 2015
$ $
Investmentmanagemgqtfee|ncomeearned 195,000 180,000
from fellow subsidiary
Other revenue
2016 2015
3 $
Interest income 6,342 4,863
Directors” remuneration
2016 2015
$ $
Fees 107,918 80,245
Other emoluments - -
107,918 80,245
Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
2016 2015
$ $
Auditors® remuneration 3,079 3,145
Administration expense 2,986 1,655
6,065 4,800

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company*s immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company settles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital taxes until 18 January 2020. Accordingly, no provision for income
taxes is included in these financial statements.
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Unconsolidated structured entities

Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appears

in the name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general

expectation from the market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the

Company was involved in the design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of

involvment with the structured entity. For unconsolidated structured entities that were

sponsored by the Company but no interest was held, the Company did not receive investment

management fees from these entities during the reporting period and no assets were

transferred to these entities.

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where no management

fee is received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2016:

- HOLT® Japan Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- HOLT® Japan Large / Mid Cap Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed

annual management fee of USD 5,000 (2015: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by

the Company as at 31 December 2016:

- Global Futures Selection Fund (Principal Protected on Maturity in AUD)

- Asia Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Global REIT Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

- US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

- Brazilian High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Principal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- CS Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- US High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Euro Stock Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- NB/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- AMP Australia Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
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Unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

- US Vvalue Equity Concentrated Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- OAM US Preferred REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

- US REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Leveraged Bull/Bear Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Shinsei World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Shinsei World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

- Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only)

- Australia REIT Fund

- Australia REIT Plus Fund

- US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

- US Municipal Bond Fund

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it

was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support to

unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractual ly required to provide.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2016 2015
$ $
Deposit with bank (interest-bearing) 748,103 864,912

Amount due from fellow subsidiary
Amount due from fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Amount due from immediate holding company

Amounts due from immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.
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13 Share capital
(a) Authorised and issued share capital

2016 2015
No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares shares
$ $

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January and 31 December 735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company*s residual assets.
(b) Capital management
The Company"s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders, by pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company®s sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group®s capital management objectives. The Company defines
“ capital” as including all components of equity.
The Company®s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors”
fiduciary duties towards the Company.
The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
period.

14 Financial risk management and fair values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Company®s business. These risks are managed by the Company®s financial
management policies and practices described below.
(a) Credit risk
The Company®s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies and
cash at bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument will
cause a financial loss to another party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management
regularly monitors its risk exposure to ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal
level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.
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Financial risk management and fair values (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Company®s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its
contractual and reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the Company"s financial liabilities, which includes all
creditors and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be settled within three
months.
Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest
on cash and deposits. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, a change in interest rates would have no
direct material effect on the carrying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the
Company.
Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which
give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (* HKD" ).
As the HKD is pegged to the United States dollar (“ USD” ), the Company considers that the
risk of movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD to be insignificant.
Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Company®s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2016.

Material related party transactions
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Company did not enter any
material related party transactions.

Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2016, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong)
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
is Credit Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland. Credit Suisse Group AG
produces financial statements available for public use.

Non-adjusting events after the reporting period
The below table shows the unconsolidated structured entities that were sponsored or
terminated by the Company after the reporting period.

Name of unconsolidated structured entities B, Sp onso_red or Effective date
terminated in 2017
OAM US Preferred REIT Fund Terminated 27 January 2017

(For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
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18 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued two amendments and
two new standards which are not yet effective for the period ended 31 December 2016 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Company:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to 1AS 7, Statements of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets

- 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses
IFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments
and new standards is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Company
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Company®s results of operations and financial position. The Company does not intend to early
adopt any of these amendments or new standards.
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Independent auditor®s report to the shareholders of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the Tfinancial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)
Limited (the “ Company” ) set out on pages 3 to 19, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’ s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’ s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’ s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor®s report to the shareholders of

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and of the Company*"s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’ s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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KPMG

P.0. Box493

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Municipal Bond Fund (the "Series Trust'), a series trust
of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the "Trust™), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at November 30, 2017, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at November 30, 2017, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the period from November 16, 2016 (Commencement of Operations) through November 30, 2017
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("'l FRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("' I1ESBA Code'™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with 1 FRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors "™ Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
May4, 2018
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the
“Company”) set out on pages 4 to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flow and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard
(“1FRS™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor®s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors” for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibi lities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®"s internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor™s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince"s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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